
B-3074 

B-3073 - B-3078 1815-1825/1870's 
805-829 S. Charles St. (East side) 
Baltimore, Md. 
Private and semi-public access 

The rows of two and a half story, two bay wide brick houses at 813-819 
S. Charles St. and 821-829 S. Charles St. are among the earliest surviving 
rows of Federal-style houses built in the Federal Hill area. The houses at 
813-819 S. Charles St. are the earliest, having been built between 1815 and 
1819 by Andrew Rohr, a butcher who lived at 813 S. Charles St. The houses 
are noteworthy for being only one room deep, a fact that corresponds to their 
early date. The larger, two-room deep row at 821-829 S. Charles St. was built 
in 1818-1820 by John Cator, a local brickmaker. 821-825 S. Charles St. are 
in close to their original exterior condition but 827-829 S. Charles St. now 
serves as a local bar and the facade has been drastically altered. To the 
north of Churchill St., at 805-807 and 809-811 S. Charles St., there are two 
pairs of three story, two bay wide brick buildings with shed roofs and 
bracketed cornices, the first floor areas of each having at some point in 
the past been converted to storefronts. These buildings represent either 
replacements or enlargements of the original two and a half story houses 
that were built on this site in the early 1820's by Nelson Wells, a free 
black who worked in the area as a drayman. Except for the bar at 827-829 
S. Charles St. all of the houses in this block are currently unoccupied and 
awaiting renovation. 
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DESCRIPTION 
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE 

—EXCELLENT ^-DETERIORATED _UNALTERED X-ORIGfNAL SITE 

—GOOD _RUINS X-ALTERED —MOVED DATE 

—FAIR —UNEXPOSED 

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

This pair of three story, two bay,brick buildings with shed roof and bracketed 
cornice replaced original 2 1/2 story houses on this site. The first floor of 809 
S. Charles St. has been converted into a store-front; the first floor of 811 S. Charle; 
St. most recently served as a neighborhood bar. 

The houses are three stories in height, though not nearly so tall as their 
neighbors, 805-807 S. Charles St. 809 S. Charles is wide, 811 S. Charles is 

wide. The house extend back on their lots . The pair of buildings is % 

constructed in common bond, but 811 S. Charles St. has been covered with formstone. 
The shed roof is surmounted by a cornice that runs continuously across both facades. 
It consists of a deeply projecting crown molding supported by heavy, carved 
modillions. Beneath the modillions, there is a row of dentils above a row of 
scallop-like carvings. The cornice is supported by five carved wooden brackets. 
If they once connected to a lower molding strip, it is now gone. Rectangular 
chimneys rise along the south side of each house. 

The window openings of the first and second floors have common arched lintels, 
composed of a double row of headers, above scroll-sawed tympanum. The sills are 
wood. No original sash remains and the openings are either boarded or empty. 
The first floor of 809 S. Charles St. has been converted into a store-front of 
vaguely Colonial Revival design. A three-sided bay projects to the left of the 
doorway and both are surmounted by a deeply projecting, plain cornice, composed of 
a heavy crown molding, a row of dentils, and a plain freize area. The store-front 
windows are currently plastered over. The first floor fenestration pattern of 
811 S. Charles St. has been altered so that there is now a central modern door 
flanked by two rectangular modern windows. The houses sit on low basements, the 
entrances being reached by a single stone stoop. 

o 
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE - CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW 

—PREHISTORIC ARCHEOLOGY PREHISTORIC —COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE —RELIGION 

— 1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —LAW —SCIENCE 
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— 1700-1799 _ART —ENGINEERING —MUSIC —THEATER 
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—INVENTION 

SPECIFIC DATES c. 1854 BUILDER/ARCHITECT John F. Buschman 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

This property is significant for having once been the site of the home of 
Nelson Wells, a free man of color, who bought a 60' lot on S. Charles St. (805-811) 
in 1818 from the administrator of the estate of a John Forney, who apparently had 
built two houses on the two lots. Wells was a drayman and he continued to live 
at the north-east corner of Charles St. and Sugar Alley until 1842, when_.he_sold the 
southern half of the property to John F. Buschman.2 Wells died a year later but his 
widow lived at the house on the northern lot until her death, when the trustees of 
of Wells' estate sub-divided the lot and built a modern building on it (See under 
805-807 S. Charles St.) Buschman operated a grocery store at this location but in 
'854 sold the property to Ferdinand Pfister for a price that would indicate that 
che new Victorian-style building had replaced the earlier house. Pfister apparently 
lived at 809 S. Charles St. and had a grocery at 811 S. Charles St.4 

The houses are currently being offered for sale by the City to private owners 
and hopefully will soon be renovated. 

'Baltimore City Land Records, Liber WG 148, Folio 454 

2Ibid., Liber TK 317, Folio 412; Baltimore City Directory, 1822, 1842 

3Ibid, Liber Ed 59, Folio 53; B.C.P., 1849-50 

4B.C.D., 1856=57, 1868 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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GEOGRAPHICAL DATA 
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION . 

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES 

STATE COUNTY 

STATE COUNTY 

FORM PREPARED BY 
NAME/TITLE 

M.E. Hayward / Historic Sites Surveyor 
ORGANIZATION, DATE 

Maryland Historical Trust / Struever Bros. & Eccles 3/79 
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE 

1745 C i r c l e Rd. 
CITY OR TOWN STATE 

Ruxton Maryland 21204 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 Supplement. 

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information 
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe­
ment of individual property rights. 

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust 
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle 
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 
(301) 267-1438 
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B-3074 
809-811 S. Charles Street 
Block 0905 Lots 073-072 
Baltimore City 
Baltimore East Quad. 





B-3074 809-811 S. Charles St. 

M.E.H. 4/79 

West elevation 


